
DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD MEETING 
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 20, 2022 

9:00 A.M. 
OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

ONE VISITORS CENTER CIRCLE 
MANTEO, NC 27954 

 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 

I. Call to Order    
 
II. Pledge of Allegiance & Moment of Silence  
 
III. Approval of Agenda 
     
IV. Approval of Minutes from the September 15, 2022 Meeting 
 
V. Public Comments 
 
VI. Steering/Chairman’s Report 

1. Tourism Impact Grant Extension Requests 
2. Tourism Impact Grant Award Recommendations 

 
VII. Budget & Finance Report 
 
VIII. Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Updates 
 
IX. Old Business 
 
X. New Business 
     
XI. Board Member Comments 
      
XII.     Set Date, Time, and Place of Next Meeting    
 
XIII.  Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
     



	

September 15, 2022 Dare County Tourism Board  1 

RECORD OF MINUTES 
DARE COUNTY TOURISM BOARD 
THURSDAY, SEPTEMBER 15, 2022 

9:00 A.M. 
OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES 

MANTEO, NC 27954 
 

 
ATTENDING:   
In-Person: Tim Cafferty, Chair; Monica Thibodeau, Vice Chair; Ervin Bateman, Treasurer; Ivy Ingram, 
Assistant Treasurer; Jamie Chisholm, Secretary; Mark Ballog, Gray Berryman, David Hines, Leo Holland, 
Dennis Robinson, and Jay Wheless, Legal Counsel.  
 
EXCUSED ABSENCE: Bambos Charalambous, Bobby Owens, and Mike Siers. 
 
STAFF: 
Lee Nettles, Executive Director  
Diane Bognich, Director of Administration  
Amy Wood, Clerk to the Board/Administrative Specialist  
Lorrie Love, Tourism Sales and Events Manager  
Aaron Tuell, Public Relations Manager 
 
OTHERS ATTENDING: 
John Harris, Billy Vaughn, Susie Walters, Sandra Allen, and G.W. Meadows, Rogallo Foundation; Becky 
Huff, Dare County Tax Collector; and Ricki Burrus, Dare County Occupancy/Food & Beverage Tax, Dare 
County Tax Department; Luke Halton, The OBX Way; and Philip Ruckle, The Coastland Times. 
 
The meeting was called to order at 9:00 a.m.  The Board then recited the pledge of allegiance, followed by a 
moment of silence.  
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: Mr. Holland moved to approve the agenda. Second by Ms. Ingram. There was 
no discussion. The motion passed unanimously (10-0). 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES: Ms. Thibodeau moved to approve the meeting minutes from August 18, 2022 
meeting.   Second by Mr. Holland. There was no discussion.  The motion passed unanimously (10-0). 

 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  John Harris and Billy Vaughn reviewed the history of the Rogallo Foundation, 
Francis Rogallo, the history of the flexible wing and what its impact has been on wind sports, and preliminary 
plans for a museum dedicated to Rogallo and the flexible wing (presentation attached). 
 
MEALS AND OCCUPANCY TAX: Becky Huff reviewed how the meals and occupancy taxes, particularly 
VRBO, Airbnb, and campgrounds, are collected, broken into categories, and distributed.  
 
CHAIR’S REPORT:  The Chair reviewed past and future event center presentations made to the Towns.  
The Chair and Jay Wheless noted the completed Memorandum of Understanding for the Boardwalk 
Easement, as part of the PARTF grant application, with the County.  
 
BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT:  Mr. Bateman reviewed the meals and occupancy receipts received.  
Receipts for fiscal year 2022-2023 are up 14.45% compared to 2021-2022 actual receipts.   
 
 
 
 



	

September 15, 2022 Dare County Tourism Board  2 

 
GRANTS AND LOCAL PUBLIC RELATIONS:  Lee Nettles and Ms. Chisholm reviewed the work of the 
Grant Committee at their September 6, 2022 meetings.  Following the review, Ms. Chisholm moved to 
approve the following Event Grant Awards:  

Organization Event Recommended 
Award Amount 

Beach Food Pantry Outer Banks Rum Festival (2023) $5,000.00 

Dare County Arts Council Artrageous Kids Art Festival (2023) $4,500.00 
Rock the Cape (2023) $6,000.00 

Dare County Motorsports Charity 
Group 

Spring OB Bike Week South (2023) 
 

$11,500.00 

Dare County Restaurant Assoc. Taste of the Beach (2023) $20,000.00 
Eastern Surfing Association-Outer 
Banks District 

Mid-Atlantic Regional Surfing Championships (2023)  $12,500.00 

Elizabethan Gardens WinterLights (2022) $20,000.00 
First Flight Foundation Future of Electric Flight Expo (2023) $15,000.00 
Garage Band Charities OBX Rod & Custom Festival (2023) $10,000.00 
Hatteras Island Youth Education 
Fund 

Shore Break 5k & Tide Pool Fun Run (2023) $5,000.00 

Manteo Preservation Trust Holiday Tour of Homes (2022) $2,500.00 
Outer Banks Conservationists Sheep Shearing Day & Spring Festival (2023) $1,000.00 
Outer Banks SPCA Bark in the Park (2023) $1,000.00 

Outer Banks Sporting Events Flying Pirate Half Marathon (2023) $12,500.00 
Outer Banks Triathlon (2023) $12,500.00 

Roanoke Island Historical Assoc. Lost Colony Beer, Wine & Culinary Festival (2023)  $3,250.00 
Town of Manteo Midnight Magic in Manteo NYE (2022) $20,000.00 
Town of Nags Head Kelly’s St. Patrick’s Day Parade (2023) $3,500.00 
 Total Recommended Award Amount  $165,750.00 

Second by Mr. Robinson. There was no discussion.  The motion passed unanimously (10-0). 
 
OUTER BANKS VISITORS BUREAU UPDATES: Lee Nettles reviewed the: 

• Careers Beyond the Counter initiative with Dare County Schools 
• Long Range Planning Study.  Over 150 people responded to the first round of surveys to the industry 

partners. The resident survey should go out early October. 
• Southeast Tourism Society Shining Example Award for the African American Heritage Trail 
• Marketing Dashboard and visitation 

 
Lorrie Love reviewed the responses received the speakers bureau and internships in the Careers Beyond the 
Counter initiative, upcoming events at the Event Site, and speakers for the upcoming Tourism Summit.  
 
Aaron Tuell reviewed recent coverage (via articles and/or blogposts), specialized eblasts to Canadians, and 
media missions.  
 
OLD BUSINESS:  There was no old business before the Board. 
 
NEW BUSINESS:  The Chair introduced Resolution 2022-4, Dare County Tourism Board Resolution 
Regarding Occupancy Taxes Overpaid from Dare County Campgrounds (attached document is incorporated 
herewith and hereby made a part of these minutes). Following review, Ms. Thibodeau moved to adopt 
Resolution 2022-4. Second by Mr. Holland. There was no discussion. The motion passed unanimously (10-0). 
 
 
 



	

September 15, 2022 Dare County Tourism Board  3 

BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS:  
• Mr. Robinson noted that Day at the Docks event would be returning September 17 
• Ms. Thibodeau noted the upcoming Duck Jazz Fest 
• Mr. Ballog noted that September was still busy for restaurants, staffing remains an issue, and 

reviewed the North Carolina Restaurant and Lodging Association meeting held at the Hilton in early 
September. 

• Mr. Holland noted ongoing beach nourishment and lessening traffic in the Town of Southern Shores.   
 
SET DATE, TIME, AND PLACE OF NEXT MEETING: The next meeting is scheduled for  
9:00 a.m. on Thursday, October 20, 2022, in the Curtis Creech Memorial Boardroom, Outer Banks Visitors 
Bureau Administrative Office, Manteo, NC. 
  
The Chair asked if there was any further business before the Board. Hearing none, the Chair adjourned the 
meeting at 10:30 a.m. 
 
ATTESTED: 
 
 
_________________________________________________ 
Clerk, Dare County Tourism Board 



 

 
 
 

P.O. Box 8369 ● Duck, North Carolina 27949 ● 252.255.1234 ● 252.255.1236 (fax) 
www.townofduck.com 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 

At their October 11, 2022 meeting, Steering Committee recommended granting an additional 
extension to June 30, 2024. 

 
 

September 27, 2022 
 
Diane M. Bognich, Grants Administrator   
Outer Banks Tourism Board 
One Visitors Center Circle 
Manteo, NC 27954 
 
RE: Grant Extension Request, Town of Duck Pedestrian Improvements (Phase 4), Tourism 
        Impact Grant 
 
Dear Ms. Bognich: 
 
I’m writing to respectfully request a one-year extension of the Tourism Impact Grant generously 
awarded by the Dare County Tourism Board to assist the Town of Duck with completing 
construction of the fourth and final phase of pedestrian improvements in Duck Village. 
 
Scheduled to take place during the late-fall and winter months in 2022-23, construction of the 
Phase 4 pedestrian improvements has been deferred by the Town of Duck to allow this project to 
be constructed as part of a package of resiliency projects along this stretch of Duck Road (N.C. 
Highway 12) and the Currituck Sound in FY 2023-24.  In support of the various project 
components, the Town has been awarded grants from a variety of funding partners including the 
N.C. Division of Emergency Management, National Fish & Wildlife Foundation, and Dare 
County Soil & Water Conservation.  However, the largest portion of the project’s financing 
comes from a substantial grant through FEMA’s Building Resilient Infrastructure & 
Communities (BRIC) program.  The Town has been informed of this grant award by FEMA, 
pending final review of the project by federal agencies.  As this review may take up to six 
months, it has become clear that the Town will not be able to construct the proposed project 
within the originally intended timeframe.   
 
In addition, the Town is still undergoing review for permits from applicable state environmental 
agencies.  As it appears this permitting process may involve minor amendments to the proposed 



 

 

plans, it may also take additional months to complete before construction will be permitted.  The 
Town’s consulting engineers with Vanasse Hangen Brustlin (VHB) have completed and 
submitted detailed designs, site plans, and specifications for the project.  Following the initial 
reviews, VHB has submitted additional information, design changes, and responses to FEMA 
and state agencies. 
 
Due to the need for lane closures during construction of the project, the project can only be 
constructed during the off-season as N.C. Highway 12 serves as the sole access road for over 
80,000 residents and visitors located north of the project area during the summer months.  The 
timing of the BRIC grant funding and state agency review makes it infeasible for the Town to 
construct the coastal resiliency project in this year’s construction cycle, meaning that project 
construction is unlikely to begin earlier than mid-October 2023. If the sidewalk were to be 
constructed this year, significant sections of it would have to be removed and replaced to 
accommodate the potential road elevation project next year.  Rather than potentially 
reconstructing portions of the sidewalk within a year’s time, the Town of Duck is proposing to 
defer construction of the sidewalk to coincide with the project to elevate the adjoining section of 
N.C. Highway 12 in FY 2023-24. 
 
Your consideration of the requested extension will be greatly appreciated.  You are welcome to 
contact me with any questions regarding this matter. 
 
 
Sincerely,  

  Joseph H. Heard 
 

Joseph H. Heard, AICP 
Director of Community Development 

 

















































































 

 

Outer Banks Visitors Bureau 
 

PUBLIC RELATIONS REPORT: October 2022 
 

LEE NETTLES INTERVIEWED - TOURISM INDUSTRY NEWS 
 

              Outer Banks Voice | Sept-22 “July occupancy collections surge over $200M mark” https://bit.ly/3xS5B20 
North Beach Sun | Sept- 22 “Voices of the Past” see .pdf  

 
EARNED MEDIA 

  
 News & Observer | Sept-22 “A guide to NC’s beaches and coastal getaways: Outer Banks, Atlantic and more”
 https://bit.ly/3DjiwO5 

 
Espaces | Sept-22 “Kayaking Along the Water in the Outer Banks” Writer Malik Cocherel writes for Quebec’s largest 
outdoors enthusiast publication eSpaces. This article comes out just in time to support our fall Canadian market 
efforts. https://bit.ly/3SA9CjO 
 
The Virginia Sportsman | Sept-22 “Out of Wanchese” The Outer Banks Visitors Bureau PR team assisted writer 
Mike Welton with supporting images for his fishing community focused article. https://bit.ly/3CiJYul 
 
Family Rving | Oct-22 “North Carolina's Outer Banks” Aaron teamed up with Canadian travel writer Jo Matyas to 
develop camping and offseason outdoor content for the OuterBanks.org/blog and Family RVing Magazine following 
a visit in February.  see.pdf 
 
- also by Jo Matyas for OuterBanks.org 
ROAD TRIPPING WITH YOUR DOG ON THE OUTER BANKS HTTPS://BIT.LY/3TMWY4Q 
THE OUTER BANKS: A FANTASTIC RV DESTINATION HTTPS://BIT.LY/3KTZFI7 
THE BEST FREE THINGS TO DO ON THE OBX HTTPS://BIT.LY/3TIABDX  

 
OUTERBANKS.ORG/BLOG  POSTS 

 
“Haunted Spots on the Outer Banks”| Sept-22 Written by content coordinator Stephanie Hall https://bit.ly/3BIjrEb 
 
CONTENT PARTNERSHIPS & COLLABORATIONS 
 
Travel Awaits | Aug-22  “I Tried Hang Gliding At Age 55, Here’s Why I Think You’ll Love It” The PR team hosted a 
media tour for several journalists as part of a content generation program for OuterBanks.org. Author Dr. Gail 
Clifford wrote many articles this summer following her press visit both for Travel Awaits and us 
https://bit.ly/3KH3svl 
 
Atlas Obscura | Sept-22 “What’s Inside the New Gastro Obscura Vending Machine?” Aaron helped connect local 
tour guide entrepreneur Francis D’Ambra with the magazine for inclusion of The Mother Vine preserves. 
https://bit.ly/3fshtl2  
 
PUBLICITY 
 
Cardinal & Pine | Aug-22 “Each of These 20 Indie Bookstores In North Carolina Has a Story to Tell” Outer 
Banks Visitors Bureau team contributed ideas for this article. https://bit.ly/3fwqIRf  
 
Hospitality Newsmaker Alert | Sept-22 “STS announces 2022 Shining Example Award Winners” Outer Banks 
Visitors Bureau regional partnership promoting northeast North Carolina’s collective African American heritage 
sites garners attention. https://bit.ly/3xr77YJ 
 



 

 

The Travel | Sept-22 “10 Things To Do In The Fall At The Outer Banks” https://bit.ly/3SLVPXk 
 
News & Observer | Sept-22 “Two North Carolina restaurants rank among the nation’s best.” 
https://bit.ly/3SGdwYu 
 
IN DEVELOPMENT 
 
(Real Estate TV Show TBA) | Oct-22 Aaron’s working with an established writer for an online article that potentially 
features the Outer Banks. 
 
Camper Girl | Apr-23 Aaron’s working with an editor of the popular trailer camping focused magazine for a full 
feature on the Outer Banks as part of a big camping meet-up on Hatteras Island in the spring. 
 
Down the Road Surf and Art Festival | OBVB worked out a content partnership with the new grassroots surfing 
event to develop imagery and video that can be used in PR, marketing and social as part of our presenting 
sponsorship. 

 
MEDIA MISSIONS 
 
VisitNC  NY Mission | Oct 17-21 Aaron’s participating in an out-of-market PR tour led by VisitNC’s agency to pitch 
New York City editors and journalists in a series of desk-side visits and small group networking to put Outer Banks 
content ideas forward and identify journalist trends and needs for 2023. 
 
CANADA PROGRAM 
 
Toronto Star email campaign | Oct 14  As a recap, the OBVB team built out a welcome page for our northern 
neighbors at OuterBanks.org/Canada as part of an effort to capture fall interest in the OBX and help perpetuate that 
relationship with travelers. The first round of email deployed on Sep 16 with an open rate of 18.7 % of 127K 
distributions. The second round of email deploys Oct 14 with links to Canadian visitor specials in the local OBX 
community.  



Located at the Fort Raleigh National Historic Site , the First Light of Freedom Monument 
commemorates the 1862 Roanoke Island Freeman's Colony, which was the very first government
established community of African American freedom seekers in the South. Photo by Ryan Moser. 

24 I FALL 2022 





9/26/22, 9:09 AM Kayaking: Along the Water in the Outer Banks | Spaces

https://www-espaces-ca.translate.goog/articles/destinations/17063-au-fil-de-leau-dans-les-outer-banks?_x_tr_sl=fr&_x_tr_tl=en&_x_tr_hl=en&_x_tr_pt… 1/6

In North Carolina, near Cape Hatteras, the string of islands in the Outer Banks offers a magnificent playground for
kayakers of all levels. Here are some of the most beautiful nautical excursions to do in this region renowned for its
wild nature, its picturesque villages and its beautiful lighthouses.

ROANOKE ISLAND

It was on this small corner of land that the British established their first colony in North America, in 1585, before
strangely disappearing a few years later, without leaving any trace. Even today, the enigma of "the lost colony" has
still not been solved. Historians and other passionate researchers from around the world continue to travel regularly
to Roanoke Island in an attempt to finally unravel this mystery.

© Adobe Stock

For kayakers, this is the ideal place to set up base camp before putting the paddles in the water. The quaint village
of Manteo has several charming guesthouses, like the Roanoke Island Inn , which offers stunning views of
Shallowbag Bay. Venture by kayak along the coasts of Roanoke allows you to immerse yourself in this rich history,
admiring in passing a 21-meter replica of the sailboat that embarked the first settlers sent by Sir Walter Raleigh.

ALONG THE WATER IN THE OUTER BANKS
BY MALIK COCHEREL
UPDATED SEPTEMBER 22, 2022

   

https://translate.google.com/website?sl=fr&tl=en&hl=en&prev=search&u=http://roanokeislandinn.com/


9/26/22, 9:09 AM Kayaking: Along the Water in the Outer Banks | Spaces

https://www-espaces-ca.translate.goog/articles/destinations/17063-au-fil-de-leau-dans-les-outer-banks?_x_tr_sl=fr&_x_tr_tl=en&_x_tr_hl=en&_x_tr_pt… 2/6

You can also go further offshore to explore two of the largest estuaries in the Outer Banks: Pamlico Bay to the
south, and Albemarle Bay to the north. The latter is known for offering a beautiful panoramic view of Jockey's Ridge
Park where the highest natural sand dunes on the American East Coast are located. Well-established in the
region, Kitty Hawk Kites  offers kayak rentals and guided excursions from Manteo.

NAGS HEAD SALT MARSHES

Not far from Roanoke Island, about fifteen minutes by car from Manteo, a completely different setting is offered to
kayakers. The salt marshes of Nags Head constitute a formidable labyrinth of more or less narrow channels
allowing you to be at the front row to observe the local flora and fauna, without having to force too much on the
strokes of the paddle.

© Malik Cocherel

Many species of birds are found there, from pelicans to egrets, including herons, ospreys and ibises. Nothing better
than these calm and shallow waters bordered by tall windswept grasses to treat yourself to a soothing excursion in
the great outdoors. At the end of the day, you can enjoy wonderful sunsets.

The salt marshes of Nags Head are also a dream destination for fishing. Kitty Hawk Kites offers a whole range of
Hobie kayaks for hire, all equipped with the Mirage Drive system. With this crankset, the propulsion is done with the
strength of the legs, which leaves the hands free to fish. A rudder system helps steer these kayaks which feature a
raised seat for improved comfort.         

KITTY HAWK SEA FOREST

A great adventure awaits you in this nature reserve which is home to a wide variety of plant and animal
species. This rich ecosystem has developed over the years on the remains of ancient sand dunes. The kayak is

https://translate.google.com/website?sl=fr&tl=en&hl=en&prev=search&u=http://www.kittyhawk.com


9/26/22, 9:09 AM Kayaking: Along the Water in the Outer Banks | Spaces

https://www-espaces-ca.translate.goog/articles/destinations/17063-au-fil-de-leau-dans-les-outer-banks?_x_tr_sl=fr&_x_tr_tl=en&_x_tr_hl=en&_x_tr_pt… 3/6

certainly the best way to discover the swamps of this maritime forest, letting yourself be carried by a light current
and lulled by the song of birds.

© Shutterstock

The resort town of Kitty Hawk is just a stone's throw away. Yet we have the impression of being a thousand miles
from the golden sand beaches that attract crowds every summer in the region. A completely different world awaits
us in this oasis of greenery and tranquility protected by an impressive forest of maritime deciduous trees. Here we
have a magnificent glimpse of what the Outer Banks could be like in the wild.

An old wooden covered bridge – the only one you can cross on the coast of North Carolina – does not fail to add a
little more charm to this kayak trip suitable for all levels. It's an experience that can easily be done with the family to
watch the turtles take a bath in the sun or the otters and other raccoons take a dip in the brackish water.

THE ALLIGATOR RIVER NATIONAL WILDLIFE REFUGE

Go paddling alongside sharp-toothed reptiles might scare some. But it would be wrong to miss out on a kayak trip to
the largest nature reserve on the American East Coast. This water hike is simply one of the most beautiful the Outer
Banks has to offer.



9/26/22, 9:09 AM Kayaking: Along the Water in the Outer Banks | Spaces

https://www-espaces-ca.translate.goog/articles/destinations/17063-au-fil-de-leau-dans-les-outer-banks?_x_tr_sl=fr&_x_tr_tl=en&_x_tr_hl=en&_x_tr_pt… 4/6

© Shutterstock

In addition to the famous alligators (which are generally very discreet and avoid approaching boats), this refuge of
more than 60,000 hectares is home to a good number of wild species, in particular black bears and red wolves,
which have been threatened with extinction . It is therefore with eyes wide open that we venture into this carefully
preserved corner of nature, hoping to see one of them. The kayak route also allows you to contemplate, up close,
the majestic bald cypress and its strange aerial roots which rise, like stalagmites, above the water.

This magical place also has a part of legend. Like the lost colony of Roanoke Island, the houses of Buffalo City, built
at the end of the 19th century, have evaporated into nature. There is nothing left today of this town of lumberjacks
which became a mecca for the manufacture of moonshine (an illegal twist-gut) during prohibition. But you can still
venture by kayak on the narrow canals once used by smugglers. Coastal Kayak Touring Company offers guided
excursions to learn more about the history and ecosystem of the Alligator River National Wildlife Refuge.

EDENTON BAY

Located further inland, the first colonial capital of North Carolina is not geographically part of the Outer Banks, but it
does belong to the Inner Banks region. It would be a shame, however, not to stop in this charming town designated
by Forbes magazine as one of the most beautiful small towns in America.

https://translate.google.com/website?sl=fr&tl=en&hl=en&prev=search&u=http://www.outerbankskayaktours.com/


9/26/22, 9:09 AM Kayaking: Along the Water in the Outer Banks | Spaces

https://www-espaces-ca.translate.goog/articles/destinations/17063-au-fil-de-leau-dans-les-outer-banks?_x_tr_sl=fr&_x_tr_tl=en&_x_tr_hl=en&_x_tr_pt… 5/6

© Adobe Stock

Kayaking is a good way to discover the peaceful bay of Edenton which leads to the huge Albemarle estuary going
to the barrier islands of the Outer Banks. Here, the bald cypresses cohabit with splendid colonial buildings, posted
at the edge of the water and incredibly well preserved.

To dive back centuries and go paddling in this postcard setting, you can book a guided kayak tour with Native Girl
Kayaking . A member of the American Canoe Association, Cassondra is happy to begin beginners and more
experienced alike on this magnificent adventure. You should allow about two hours to go around the bay
completely.    

PRACTICAL-PRACTICAL

https://translate.google.com/website?sl=fr&tl=en&hl=en&prev=search&u=http://nativegirlkayaking.com/


9/26/22, 9:09 AM Kayaking: Along the Water in the Outer Banks | Spaces

https://www-espaces-ca.translate.goog/articles/destinations/17063-au-fil-de-leau-dans-les-outer-banks?_x_tr_sl=fr&_x_tr_tl=en&_x_tr_hl=en&_x_tr_pt… 6/6

© kitty Hawk Kittes

Most Outer Banks kayak tours are accessible to all paddlers, regardless of experience level. But the weather
conditions, which can change very quickly along the coast, can make the experience more difficult. So remember to
check the local forecasts before you go in the water. Don't forget to carefully plan your route and take a life jacket,
survival whistle, telephone, map and compass with you, especially if you decide to go without a
guide. Some waterways are real labyrinths where finding the way out can be quite a challenge.

The easiest way to get to the Outer Banks is to rent a car at Raleigh-Durham Airport in North Carolina. Then count
a little over 3 hours by road to reach Manteo, on Roanoke Island.

The author was a guest on Visit North Carolina.

Info : outerbanks.org  and  visitnc.com

https://translate.google.com/website?sl=fr&tl=en&hl=en&prev=search&u=http://www.outerbanks.org
https://translate.google.com/website?sl=fr&tl=en&hl=en&prev=search&u=https://www.visitnc.com/


10/3/22, 10:13 AM The Outer Banks Voice - July occupancy collections surge over $200M mark

https://www.outerbanksvoice.com/2022/09/21/july-occupancy-collections-surge-over-200m-mark/ 5/16

July occupancy collections surge over $200M
mark

By Mark Jurkowitz | Outer Banks Voice on September 21, 2022

(Dare County Tourism Board)

But record numbers don’t mean record visitors

The July 2022 occupancy revenues just reported by Outer Banks Visitors Bureau Executive Director Lee Nettles surged over the $200 million mark to
set an all-time record. But according to Nettles, that doesn’t mean we’re seeing more visitors.

In reviewing the data during his recap of the Sept. 15 Dare County Tourism Board meeting, Nettles reported on “the historic” occupancy collection
numbers that showed a jump of 27% in July 2022 compared with July 2021. That’s the first time that occupancy numbers in any month surpassed the
$200 million mark, coming in at $203.8 million. For the year to date, 2022 occupancy collections are up 13% over the previous record-setting year.

But Nettles added a significant point of context after reciting those numbers, noting that “we do see that a lot of these increases are driven by price
changes, rate changes rather than number of people. In some cases, we’ve seen drops in the number of people as evidenced by some decreasing numbers
in other lodging segments.”

In an interview with the Voice back in May, Nettles acknowledged that the county’s optimal capacity for tourists, in terms of sheer numbers, has already
been reached, and even exceeded.

“The level of visitation that we’ve had in the last year and a half is not necessarily sustainable,” he said, “particularly when you combine it with a limited
workforce and some of the other challenges we’ve got…There’s a price for that growth. The impacts of tourism are both positive and negative.”

In his summary of the Sept. 15 tourism board meeting, Nettles also reported that meals collections for July were up 9% over July 2021, at $61.1 million,
with a year-to-date increase of a little over 6%.

Click here to watch the Dare County Tourism Board Recap.

Privacy  - Terms

×

https://www.outerbanksvoice.com/author/mark-jurkowitz/
https://www.outerbanksvoice.com/wp-content/uploads/2022/09/DCVB-occupancy-rate.jpg
https://www.moyockfd.org/
https://www.outerbanksvoice.com/2022/09/21/dare-county-tourism-board-recap-september-2022/
https://www.google.com/intl/en/policies/privacy/
https://www.google.com/intl/en/policies/terms/
https://obcinc.org/event/pumpkin-patch-october-1-8-15-22/all/





 


 • 
 

 
 


O

C
TO

B
ER

 20
22

OCTOBER 2022ENHANCING THE RV LIFESTYLE

 Wisconsin Wisconsin
RetreatRetreat

Kohler-Andrae State Park
page 76

  IMPROVING STEERING CONTROL    SPOKANE, WASHINGTON    SOFTBALL FOR SNOWBIRDS

Value of 

FMCAFMCA 
Membership

Page 4

THIS ARTICLE IS REPRINTED FROM THE OCTOBER 2022 ISSUE

VOL. 59 NO. 10• $3.99 US
FamilyRVingmag.com  



66 • FAMILYRVing • OCTOBER 2022

Jo
se

ph
in

e 
M

at
ya

s

Where wind and water meet dunes of sand. 

Outer Banks 
North Carolina's 

Reprinted from Family RVing©, October 2022 • 800-543-3622 • www.FamilyRVingmag.com



OCTOBER 2022 • FAMILYRVing • 67 

Bodie Island Lighthouse celebrates its 150th anniversary on October 1. The lighthouse was electrified 
in 1932, phasing out the need for on-site keepers. The most recent tower restoration was completed in 2013. 

G
et

ty
 Im

ag
es

BY JOSEPHINE MATYAS, F468364 

he weather in the Outer 
Banks of North Carolina 

is nothing if not changeable. 
At sunrise, my cellphone 

rang to let me know that early-
morning bird-watching along 

the coastline was off — too foggy — 
but we’d head inland to look for wildlife. 
Guides in this area know how to look 
out the window and pivot. 

The Outer Banks — affectionately 
abbreviated as OBX — is a 130-mile strip 
of barrier islands known for windswept 
dunes and beaches, tall lighthouses, the 
history of powered flight, shipwrecks, 
and spectacular birding. Coastal North 
Carolina Highway 12 is an RV-friendly 
route that allows for a more leisurely 
pace than zinging along the transport-
packed interstate. A large part of the 
ribbon of narrow coastline is protected 
as Cape Hatteras National Seashore.

WILDLIFE SHELTER
Jonathan Cooley, a professional birding 
guide with Native Birding Tours, keeps 
one eye on the day’s weather and knows 
the best spots to suit the conditions. 

“I like showing people the diversity 
of wildlife here in the Outer Banks,” he 
said. “We’re right on the Atlantic Flyway, 
and more than 420 species of birds are 
found in this region. And birding is eas-
ily accessible — you can bird just about 
anywhere with minimal equipment.”

We moved slightly inland from the 
foggy shoreline and drove through 
Alligator River National Wildlife Refuge, 
known for its population of black bears 
and endangered red wolves. The refuge’s 
wetlands turned out to be a fantastic 
birding site as well. In the space of a 
few hours, I ticked dozens of species off 
my checklist, including tundra swan, 
Carolina chickadee, belted kingfisher, 

Reprinted from Family RVing©, October 2022 • 800-543-3622 • www.FamilyRVingmag.com



68 • FAMILYRVing • OCTOBER 2022

and American kestrel. In the shallow 
waterways crisscrossing the refuge, 
we spotted a sleek river otter and 
several species of aquatic turtles 
stretching toward slivers of sun as 
the clouds broke. 

“A lot of birding is by ear,” 
Jonathan explained. “You can hear 
them calling before you see them.” 
He recommends using the Merlin 
Bird ID app, which is loaded with 
bird sounds and calls, identification 
photos, and a checklist of behaviors.

Once the fog lifted, we drove back 
to the coastline for several hours of 
birding at Pea Island National Wildlife 
Refuge, located at almost exactly the 
halfway point on the Outer Banks. 
Before heading along the North Pond 
Wildlife Trail, we clambered to the top 
of the sand dunes and used the spot-
ting scope to view waterfowl bobbing 
on the saltwater.

Jonathan was enthusiastic about 
the year-round birding possibilities. 
“Getting 50 to 60 species on any 
given day is doable, especially if you 
have a guide. The fall — especially 
October — is the best time for diver-
sity, and you could spot 100 species 
in a single day. You have some water-
fowl coming in, breeding birds are 
around, and migrating birds are 
passing through. This is a prime 
birding location.”

From professional f liers, I turned 
my attention to the first f light 
attempts by people.

THE HISTORY OF FLIGHT
The town of Kill Devil Hills is re-
nowned as the spot where humans 
first achieved powered f light, thanks 
to the tinkering of those bicycle-
building Wright brothers — Orville 
and Wilbur. Bicycling was all the 
rage at the turn of the 20th century, 
and the brothers sensed a connection 
between the two-wheeler and the 

potential for f light; it was all about 
turning and control.

After several years of study and 
experimentation, the Wright broth-
ers broke out the slide rule and 
calculated that if they made the wing 
just four inches longer, the aircraft 
would be stable. By tying in the 
warping of the wings with the use of 
a rudder, they designed something 
no one ever had: a power-driven, 
man-made machine that would f ly. 

A century ago, OBX was accessible 
only by boat and had very few resi-
dents. This guaranteed isolation and 
the reliable winds drew Orville and 
Wilbur Wright to fine-tune and test 

their homemade flying machines. 
On a blustery December 17 in 1903, 
the brothers changed history in mere 
seconds, cementing Kitty Hawk as 
the site of the first successful pow-
ered airplane flights. They piloted 
four successful flights, lasting from 
12 seconds to 59 seconds. It’s a story 
beautifully told at the Wright Brothers 
National Memorial, located at the exact 
spot where the brothers took to the air. 

The updated visitors center is filled 
with reproductions of the Wrights’ 
planes and the factors they studied to 
adjust lift, power, and control — and 
to turn dreams into reality. Outside, 
large stones pinpoint liftoffs and 

Josephine Matyas

Josephine Matyas

Getty Images/Greg Meland

Josephine Matyas

Outer Banks 
North Carolina's Reprinted from Family RVing©, October 2022 • 800-543-3622 • www.FamilyRVingmag.com



OCTOBER 2022 • FAMILYRVing • 69 

landings for each of the four f lights. 
On the park grounds, the stone 
memorial at Big Kill Devil Hill 
marks the spot from which they 
launched the initial trials for their 
“soaring machines.”

A WORLD BENEATH 
THE SURFACE
What could be more fascinating 
than peeking beneath the waves? 
To illustrate the watery side of the 
OBX environment, the North 
Carolina Aquarium at Roanoke 
Island has touch tanks with small 
rays and horseshoe crabs skittering 
about; enormous sea-water tanks 

filled with skates, rays, sharks, fish, 
and electric-looking jellyfish; and a 
sea turtle hospital. 

In the colder months of winter 
and early spring, the Sea Turtle 
Assistance and Rehabilitation Center 
can house hundreds of cold-stunned 
reptiles. According to the aquarium’s 
sea turtle rehabilitation technician, 
“When the body temperature of a 
sea turtle hits 50 degrees, it’s consid-
ered to be cold stunned. There is a 
24-hour hotline and special patrols 
who watch the beaches for turtles 
in distress. In this region, we see 
mainly greens and Kemp’s ridleys in 
the hospital. Over several weeks, we 

warm them up, and feed them before 
releasing them back into the ocean.” 

LIGHTHOUSES AND THE 
GRAVEYARD OF THE ATLANTIC
The constant winds, the power of the 
ocean, and storm dynamics are ever 
so slowly shifting the sandy dunes 
westward. It’s a fact of life that local 
officials and road crews grapple with 
each season. Thousands of ships 
have sunk in the treacherous cur-
rents — often thanks to the shifting 
underwater sand bars, known as 
the Diamond Shoals. The collision of 
the Gulf Stream with the Labrador 
Current creates unpredictable 

Clockwise from left: Visit the North 
Carolina Aquarium to see marine life up 
close. This marker commemorates the first 
successful airplane flight at the Wright 
Brothers National Memorial. The sandy 
beaches of Pea Island National Wildlife 
Refuge are home to many endangered 
species. Not all turtles in the Outer Banks 
live in the sea — many dwell in ponds and 
lakes. A black bear is seen strolling down 
a road. The diverse ecosystem allows many 
opportunities to view and photograph local 
wildlife, especially diff erent bird species. 

Getty Images/zimmytws

Josephine Matyas

Reprinted from Family RVing©, October 2022 • 800-543-3622 • www.FamilyRVingmag.com



70 • FAMILYRVing • OCTOBER 2022

weather patterns, and these storms —  
together with the changeable shoals —  
have sunk many ships in what has 
become known as the “Graveyard  
of the Atlantic.” 

The Graveyard of the Atlantic 
Museum in Hatteras tells the tale of 
the more than 2,000 shipwrecks — 
including 90 vessels from World  
War II — that sank to the ocean  
f loor along the barrier islands. The 
tricky shoals and navigational obsta-
cles created an advantage for savvy 
pirates who sailed the coastline look-
ing for ships loaded with goods that 
had run ashore. 

It was this ghastly history that 
eventually led to the building of 
three lighthouses along the shore-
line: Bodie, Hatteras, and Ocracoke. 
As a teenager, shipmate Alexander 
Hamilton made a frightening trip 
around pitch-black Cape Hatteras  
in stormy seas. Years later, after 
working his way up the job ladder  
to become the first Secretary of the 
Treasury for the United States, 
Hamilton made sure a lighthouse 

was built on that very spot. Today,  
at 198.49 feet from the bottom of  
the foundation to the top of the  
tower pinnacle, the Cape Hatteras 
Lighthouse is the tallest brick light-
house in North America. Beach 
erosion and the ever-shifting coast-
line threatened the stability of the 
current lighthouse, and in 1999 it 
underwent “the move of the cen-
tury.” Over the course of three  
weeks, it was lifted and moved  
2,900 feet to safer ground.

A climb to the top of the pictur-
esque, black-and-white horizontal- 

striped Bodie Island Light Station 
gives a bird’s-eye view over the Cape 
Hatteras National Seashore, America’s 
first national seashore. The flashes  
of the Fresnel-lens light can be seen 
19 miles away. The light was auto-
mated in 1932; prior to that, a team of 
lighthouse keepers carried barrels of 
oil up 10 flights of stairs, refueled the 
lantern, and lit the warning beacon. 

The last of the trio of lighthouses  
is on quirky Ocracoke Island, acces-
sible only by ferry (RV and vehicle 
combinations are limited to 65 feet; 
www.ncdot.gov/divisions/ferry). 
Ocracoke is a perfect snapshot of all 
that is remarkable about the Outer 

A trio of lighthouses was built to  
prevent ships from wrecking on the 
coastline. The Graveyard of the Atlantic 
Museum (above) features items recovered 
from shipwrecks along the coast. Cape 
Hatteras Lighthouse (right) measures  
198.49 feet from the bottom of its foundation. 

Outer Banks

NORTH  
CAROLINA

Outer Banks 
North Carolina's Reprinted from Family RVing©, October 2022 • 800-543-3622 • www.FamilyRVingmag.com



OCTOBER 2022 • FAMILYRVing • 71 

Banks: buying seafood right off the 
dock; grand sweeps of secluded 
beach; a great fishing hole called the 
Atlantic Ocean; unique artisan shops; 
friendly locals; and a jet-black night-
time sky that’s perfect for stargazing. 

Ocracoke’s historic lighthouse still 
f lashes a warning to ships. Maritime 
history is thick here — this is the 
spot where the infamous pirate 
Blackbeard succumbed to no less 
than five bullet and 20 sword wounds 
before being beheaded. Legend has it 
that the pirate’s headless body swam 
seven times around the ship, but the 
locals doubt he could have managed 
more than two. 

IF YOU GO
The Outer Banks Visitors Bureau
www.outerbanks.org
(877) 629-4386

CAMPING
Spring and fall are the best times to visit — although September and October 
are at the tail end of hurricane season. Summertime has the largest crowds, 
so be sure to plan for campground reservations.

The Outer Banks are custom-made for RV travel, offering a wide selection 
of campgrounds with an array of amenities. My favorite was the dune-side 
Oregon Inlet Campground at Cape Hatteras National Seashore, with 107 sites 
(47 with electric hookups), running water, and showers throughout the property. 
A dump station is available for campers at a nearby marina. The maximum total 
vehicle length is 40 feet at all sites. 

The Cape Hatteras/Outer Banks KOA Resort at Rodanthe has full-hookup, 
oceanfront sites and amenities such as a year-round pool, a hot tub, showers, 
a laundry, a dump station, and Wi-Fi.

To the south end of the Outer Banks at Pamlico Sound, Frisco Woods 
Campground has a wide range of sites, from primitive ones to pull-through 
and back-in sites with full hookups. The campground has propane service, 
Wi-Fi, showers, a laundry, a dump station, and a swimming pool. 

SEAFOOD SUGGESTIONS
Local seafood is a must. Look for local-catch fish filets and enormous, meaty 
shrimp at O’Neal’s Sea Harvest (a favorite with the locals). To eat in or take out, 
the shrimp burger at Sam & Omie’s is a Carolina favorite — more than a dozen 
lightly breaded and fried shrimp are piled on a bun and slathered with melted 
cheddar cheese, coleslaw, and tartar sauce. One of the oldest family restaurants 
on the barrier islands, this Nags Head legend began as a breakfast stop for 
early-morning fishermen.

Photos: Josephine Matyas

Ocracoke Lighthouse (above), 
built in 1823, is the oldest continuously 
in-service lighthouse in North Carolina. 
Frisco Woods Campground (above right) 
offers waterfront sites on Pamlico Sound.

Reprinted from Family RVing©, October 2022 • 800-543-3622 • www.FamilyRVingmag.com


	AGENDA
	September 15, 2022 Minutes
	Duck Extension
	Coastal Federation  Ext
	TIG Recommendations
	BUDGET & FINANCE
	graphs
	1
	2
	3

	Dashboard
	PR2
	sales
	PR_POP-DCTB_10.2022.pdf
	North Beach Sun_Voices of the Past_09.01.2022
	SKM_C75922100309030
	SKM_C75922100309031

	ESpaces_Kayaking_ Along the Water in the Outer Banks _09.22.2022
	Outer Banks Voice_July occupancy collections surge over $200M mark_09.21.2022
	Family RVing_North Carolina's Outer Banks_10.2022




